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Strategic Report

Far the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Report

The directors present their strategic report on the Group for the percd ended 31 January 2022,

Strategy
Nash Squared Holdings Limited and its subsidicnies, 1ngether "Nash Squared”, is the leading global provider of tcchnology and talent soluticons. We'ie
equipped with o unigue network, that realises the potential where people and technology maet.

For over three decades we've been helping clients solve bread and complex problems, building and scaling their technology and digital capability in
avery way, fram connecting arganisations with the very best global talent to applying technology expertise to solve complex problems.

Nash Squared was formed on 25 October 2018 when DBAY Advisors, through Nash Squared Holdings Limited {previously Harvey Nash Group Holdings
Limited). acquirad Nash Squared Limited (previously Harvey Nash Group Limited) and oll its subsidiades. Nash Squared aims to accelerate growth
through investments in people, systems, solutions and potentially futher acquisitions.

There were na new acquisitions during the year, The directors finalised the cnboarding of Latitude 34 and reported results significantly above
investment expectations, further increasing the reach of the Nash Squared's North American foctprint,

Review of the business

The progress of Nash Squared Haoldings Ltid is summarsed below:
Results and performance
Nash Squared reported an operating profit of £17.5m ofter exceptional costs {2021: £4.7m}. Operating profit excluding exceptional costs was £18.8m

[2021: £10.1m). Profit before tax for the period including all exceptional items was £15.7m (20212 £2.5m). The directors are satisfied with the results.

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

The directors consider the key performance indicators are those that communicale the financial performance and strength of the business.

2022 2021

£'000 £ 000

Revenue 679,428 564,447
Gross profit 119,550 95,850
Gross margin 17.60% 18.92%
QOperating profit (excluding exceptionals) 18,778 10,050
QOperating profit 17,485 4,677
ESITDA {pre-IFRS 14 adjusiment) excluding exceptionals * 27,724 18,324
EBITDA percentage of gross profit 23.19% 19.12%
Profit before tax 15,741 2,523

* EBITDA excluding exceptionals is calculated by adding back depraciation on property, plant and equipment of £2.1m and amartisation of £6.8m fo
operating profit before exceptionals of £18.8m.

Nash $quared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Report continued

Stakeholder engagement and our $172 statement

Introduction

Throughout the strategic and directars report, we provide examples of how we:

eTake into account the likely conseriiences of long torm decisions

=Build relationships with stakeholders

*Engage with employees and promote diversity

sUnderstand the importance of finding ways of reducing our environmental impact and be a censiderate member of locol communities
=attribute imporiance to behaving as a responsible business.

The board acknowledges Section 172 (1} of the UK Companies Act 2006, and its duly to promote the success of the Cempany.

A director of @ company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of
its members os a whole, and in doing so has regard famongst other matters) to:

aj the likely conseguences of any decision in the long ferm

b} the interests of the company’s employees

¢) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers. customers and ofhers

d) the impact of the company's operations on the community ond the environment

e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

f} the need to act faily between members of the company

The Nash Squared board 1akes these obligations seficusly and the directors are aware of their ongoing duties to act for the benefit of its customers, investors
and staff. The following section provides examples of how the company directors meet their duties to all stakeholders.

Employee engagement

During 2020, the board appoeinted its fist Chief People Officer. Since joining they have introduced o Global People Strategy to attract and refain the best
talent to enable Nash Squared to build ¢ fit for future organisation that achieves sustainable and profitable growth. This strategy is supported by a connected
peaple team to deliver key strategic actions. Key initiatives include a Global Diversity & Inclusion Council along with three employee networks and a wellbeing
hub for colleagues. candidates and clients. Alengside this there has been investment in talent and development with the introduction of a Global Talent
Framework. a mentoring programme and the Implementation of a new learming management system.

The launch of a Global engagement platform has given our colleagues a voice by fostering a culture of open feedback and actionrs. The Global engagement
survey resulls are presented at senior leadershin and board level to discuss findings, review recommendations and agree actien plans. This year also saw the
launch of 'Ask Bev', a plalform that gives colleagues from across the globe the opportunity to directly raise concemns or ask questions on the wider business
strategy with Bev White our CEQ. In conjunction wilh this, giobal strategy updates for all colleagues are held each guarter. These updates give an opportunity
to relay decisions made based on colleague feedback, communicate strategy and its impact on colleagues in addition to sharing updates on wider
economic factors affecting Nash Squared.

Equal opportunities

Nash Squared has a zero tolerance approach to discimination supported by an egual opportunities policy that aims to treat individuals fairly and not 1o
discriminate on the basis of sex, race, ethnic orgin, disability or any other basis. Nash Squared is focused on ensuring that we operate n an environment where
diversity, equality and inclusion is an integral part of our culture, where our leaders, managers and colleagues role model inclusive behaviours which permeate
through our business internally and externally.

Nash Squared's policies and procedures are designed to provide for full and fair consideration and selection of disabled applicants, to ensure that they are
properly trained to perform safely and effectively and to provide career oppoeriunities that allow them to fulfil their potential. Where an employee becomes
disabled in the course of their employment, Nash Squared will actively seek to retain them wherever possible by making adjustments to their work content and
envircnment or by retraining them to undertake new roles.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Strategic Report . oniinued

Business relationships and supply chain
The board is aware of the necessity of mainiaining a clean supply chain, free of exploited labour. Nash Squared adheres to a supplier code of conduct that
Integrate with its key policies, including its Modem Stavery, Hurman Trafficking {MSHT) and carbon reduction strategy.

The directors encourage all representatives of Nash Squared to build and maintain strong business relationships with both customers and suppliers. This
confinued engagement with customers and suppliers contibutes to the curment and conlinued achievements of Nash Squared.

Community and environment

The board is conscious that the business should have a low impact on the environment in which it operates, particulady in terms of energy consumption and
business travel. As an organisation, we take climate change serfously. Qur environmental strategy aims to reduce our carbon footprint and follows industry best
practice on environmental, social and govermnance ['ESG'] principles. Nash Squared's operations. being services, are inherently less damaging fo the
environment than other business sectors. However, the board recognises that the business must minimise its impact on the environment and utilises
recommendations from the Carbon Trust to reduce the organisation's carbon footprint.

At Nash Squared we are focused on delivering a positive social impact through our actions to support our employees. the work we do with clients every day
and through our actions with local communities, As a global employer we believe in supporting communities within the regicons we operale and we do this
through initiatives which help to deliver sustainable employment, mentoring, volunteering and fundraising. We actively encourage our colleagues to identify
oppeortunities 1o support local charities and not-for-profits via volunteering or fundraising.

Emissions and energy usage

This year we have calculated our environmental Impact across scope 1, 2 and 3 emission sources for the UK only, presenting emissions on a location basis. Gur
emissions are 121,400 kgCo2e (2021: 135,540 kgTo2e), which is an intensity ratio of 283 kgCoz2e per employee [2021: 411 kgCo2e per employee], We have
calculated the emission intensity ratios on @ per employee basis. The methodology used 1o calculate the greenhouse gas emissions uses conversion factors
published by the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for 2021. We have reported on all the measured emissions sources required under The
Companies (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships {Energy and Carbon Report] Regulations 2018, except where stated,

The directors are pleased with Nash Squared's progress in reducing carbon emissions, and remain committed to making a positive environmental contribution
while recognising their responsibility o ensure a bright future for the next generation.

04 «

Emissions and energy usage Emissions source 2022 2021
Scopel(kgCO€) Combustion, _ S 3% a0
Scope2(kgCOe) Electricity L _ . a0 64440
Scope3(kgCOe) Indirectenergy _  _ _ L wE0 190
Total kgCO.e 121,400 135,540
Total energy usage (kWh) 626,414 633,136
kgCOye peremployee L L 283 41
Emissions and carbon action

During the year we launched cur sustainability report setting out aur commitment to achieving envirenmental sustainability through targeted actions in Nash
Squared and the wider value chgin. With this in mind, we have set ambitious targets to reach carben net zero by 2030 across our operational carben footprint

[scope 1 and 2 emissions) and carbon net zero by 2050 across our entire value chain carban (including scope 3 emissions).

In tandem with the release of our sustainability report and net zero strategy we have implemented measures during the period to help meet our net zero

ambitions. The hybrid working that begaon during the Covid-19 pandemic has been formalised into a global policy allowing colleagues to continue operating

hybrid working arangements, reducing emissions from cammuting and the requirerments for physical locations.

The technotogical investments that enabled the success of our hybrid working policy have suppored the creation of travel policies that reduce non-essential
business travel while prioritising low-carbon travel options. Air travel during the periad is still below pre-pandemic levels, Nash Squared's objective is to reduce

scope 1 emissions from air travel by 50% by 2025.

MNash Squared finalised ts property rationalisation project during the period. Where leases have expired we have invested insmaller office spaces that can be
shared by our brands and support our hybrid working model, Offices that can benefit from renewable energy sources have been prioritised as part of the
rationalisation. We expect to see the full benefit from this in our scope 2 emissions data in the next reporting period. Nash Squared is aiming for all locations to

be supplied by renewable energy by 2023,

Qur vision is to build limitless futures. We believe our sustainability goals are key fo achieving this.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Repot  _.atinved

Principal tisks and uncertainties
There are certain risks and uncertainties inherent in the Group that may aftect future performance, these are described below:

tegal and regulatory

Nash Squared works in a number of gengraphic jurisdictions on o daily Lusis under a vanety ot laws and regulations. Nash Squared mitigates this risk through
camprehensive compliance policies and procedures including engaging with lecal advisers and regulators where necessary.

Financial
All potential areas of financial risk are regularly monitared and reviewed by the directors. Where necessary praventative and/or corrective measures are

taken to reduce such risk. Nash Squared operates in a number of foreign markets, the existence of which exposes the company 1o a number of financlal risks.
These risks are addressed in note 4 of the financial statements. Risks asseciated with Covid-19 are separately discussed balow.

Operafional

Nash Squared is reliant on its ability to fulfil client demand while recruiting, training and developing high quality talent 1o maintain and expand its growth
strategy. The directors actively engage in providing a structure of sustainable career development for employees.

Naish Squared continues to diversify its operations and utilises its positioning in key sectors across & broad geographic factprint to protect against lower
candidate availability in more rmature markets.

Polificaf

The increased political uncertainty from the Ukraine conflict continues to be monitored and reviewed by directors. Nash Squared does not have operations
in Ukraine or Russia so there is no direct impact on our trading at this time. In addition to the impact of inflation, tax rises are also being monitored. Client
contracts allow any state related pay increases to be charged on.

Covid-19

Despite the impact of Covid-19 on Nash Squared. the curent year results have been the strongest in the Nash Squared's history, demonsirating the resllience
and adaptability of our business model as we continue to effectively engage with clients, candidates and colleagues in a post pandemic economy.

Nash Squared continues to operate a flexibile home working madel. The succass of the flexible working implementation means that should fockdown
measures return, Nash Squared is well placed to quickly adapt without an impact on frade. To manage the impact of the changing working environment
Nash Squared continues to focus on colleague wellbeing through increased communication and a number of engagement initiatives such as the launch of
our wellbeing hul.

Climate Change

Climate change will impact Nash Squared over a significantly lenger time scale than the risks normally considered by the group risk committee.
Consequently climate change rermains an emerging risk with na material impact on curent strategy, liquidity or performance. Despite this, the group risk
committee take the impact of climate change sericusly and continue to monitor its impact.

Risk management

Nash squared adheres to g Group tisk policy and framework that was developed based around the principles of ISO31000. Risk registers are submitted from
across the organisation on a quarterly basis. The audit and risk committee meets twice a year at which Group risks are prasented for consideration.
Additionally, tha board is made awara of imminant and high risks. and the framework integrates with a business continuity plan that can be activated as
necessary.

Subsequent events

Nash Squared has compieted its subsequent events evaluation for the period subsequent to the balance sheet date of 31 January 2022, through to the date
of signing these financial staterments and concluded that there are no adjusting or non-adjusting subseguent events requiring disclosura.

Future outlook

While greater uncertainty still exists due to the global pandemic, Nash Squared's strategy leaves It well placed to continue making progress. delivering further
value to investors and stakehaolders through continued focus on the technology market, our broad portfolio of services and the geographic diversity of the

Group,

C/l./\,\)v\.w\
Chris Tilley Date: 26-May-22

Directar

Nash Squared Holdings Limifed Annua! Report & Accounts 2022
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Directors’ Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 Jcnuary 2022

Directors' report
The directors present thelr annual report and the audited financial statements for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022,
Gt 4 May 2022, the company changed its name from Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited o Nash Squared Holdings Limited,

The Group has chosen to prepare their financial statements in accordance with Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Direclors

The directors holding office at the date of this repont:

Bev White Gary Browning Adrian Gunn Joanna Macleod
Chiris Tilley Michael Haxby Diederik Vos
tichael Branigan Davigt Morrison Streisan Bevan

The below changes to the directors occumed during the perfdod and up to the date of this report:

Streisan Bevan Appointed 1 May 2021
Joanna maclecd Appointed 1 May 2021
Sean West Resigned 29 April 2021

Subsidiaries outside the United Kingdom

For the 12 month pericd ended 31 January 2022. the Group had entities established for corporation tax purposes in a number of countries, A full list of
subsidiaries and locations are set ocut on page 52 & 53.

Future developments

Details of future developments can be found in the strategic report and form part of this report by cross-reference.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Nash Squared's aclivities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. Details of Nash Squared's objectives and
policias in response 1o thase fsks can be found within note 4 to the financial statements.

Going concern

The directors have considered the current and forecast levels of frading, taking into account the cash and invoice discounting facilities expected to be
available 1o Nash Squared, and have concluded that the going concem basis of preparation remains appropriate.

In coming to their conclusion, the directors have considered trading and cash flow performance of the last 12 months and for the coming pericd. Nash
Squared has demaonstrated its resilience and ability to trade profitably through the pandemic with considered management actions to reduce costs and
maintain strong working capital management. The extremely strong current year jrading resuits support the directors firm belief that Nash Squared is well
beyond the point of peak disruption. Desgite this the directors have taken a prudent approach, and stress test scenarios have been modelled representing the
potential impact of a second pandemic downturn. In this worst case scenario, we would still maintain adequate cash headroom ond remain within the limits
of our banking arrangements.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts
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Directiors’ Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Directors’ report ontinued

Directors’ and third parly indemnity provisions

Nash Sguared has maintained throughout the period directors’ and officers' llability insurance for the benefit of the Group, the directors and its officers. The
Group has entered into qualifying third party indamnity arangements for ihe benefit of all its directors in a farm and scope which complies with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. These arangements were in farce throughout the period and remain in force ot the date of these financial

statements.

Dividends
During the perod dividends were declared and paid to the value of £1.2m (2021: £0.6m). Mo dividends have been proposed post period end.

Share capital

During the period there were no changes o the issued share capital of the Group.

Auditor and disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persens who is a Direclor at the date of approval of this repart confirms that:

so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant gudit information [as defined by section 418 of the Companies Act 2004) of which the Group's auditaris
unaware; and

o the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that informatian.
This confirmation is given and should be ir_ﬂerprefed in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006,

The auditor, Deloitte LLP, will be proposed for reappaintment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2004,

Appraved and signed on behalf of the board:

A ‘”w\/m-.‘

Chris Tilley Date:  26-May-22

Director

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Statement of Directors:-Responsibilities-inRespect of the
Annual Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Directors' Responsibilities Statement

The directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Caompany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under that law the directors are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Repoiing Stondords ('IFRSs") as
adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and they have also chosen to prepare the parent Company financial statements in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard {'FRS') 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financiat statements unless they are satfisfied 1hat they give a true and fair view of the state of offairs of
the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to:
~select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
—state whether FrS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject 1o any malerial departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and
— prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate 1o presurme that the Company will continue in business.

in business.

In prepanng the Group financial statements, Intermational Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

- properly select and apply accounting policies:

- present information. including accounting policies. in @ manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information:
information;

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
undersiand the impact of paricular transactions. other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance; and

— make an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as ¢ going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonabie accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They are alse responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other iregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial infarmation included on the Company's website. Legisiation in
ihe United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Nash
Squared Holdings Limited

Forthe 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

o fhefinancial statements of Nash Squared Holdings Limited (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries {the ‘group') give a true and fair view of the state of
the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 January 2022 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended:

o the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companiaes Act 2006 and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as Tssued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board {IASB}

« fthe parent company fingncial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™: and

o hove been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
o the consclidated statement of profit and loss;
o the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income;
o he consolidated and parent company statement of financial position;
s the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
o the consolidated cash flow statement
« therelated consolidated notes 1 1o 32; and
« therelated porent company notes 1 1o 4.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thelr preparation is applicable low and infemnational accounting standards in conformity with the

requirements of the Companies Act 2004.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {iSAs (UK]) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independeni of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the ‘FRC's'} Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements, We believe that the cudit evidence we have obtainad is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 1o events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's ability o continue as a going concem for a penod of at least twelve months from when the
finoncic! statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilifies and the responsibiiities of the directors with respect 1o going concemn are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The otherinformation comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial staterments and our auditor's report thereon. The
direcior are responsible for the other infarmation contaned within the annual report. Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and. except to the extent ofherwise explicitly stated in ourreport, we da not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identity such moterial inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determing whather this gives rise to a materdal misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If. based on the
waork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repeort that fact, We have nothing 1o
report in this regard.

Nash Squared Holdings Limhed Annual Reporl 8 Accounts 2022



Governance 10 -«
Annual Report and Financial Statements
independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Nash
Squared Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Report on the audit of the financial statements continued

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial sfatements and for being
satisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such intermal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to froud or error.

I preparing the finoncial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's apility to continue as a geing concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors eitherintend to liquidate the
group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altermative but to do so.

Auditer's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal rmisstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not o guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect o materal misstatermant when it exists. Misstatements can arse from fraud or eror and are
considered material if, individually or in the oggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website atl www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the gudit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

rregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above,
to defect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The extent 1o which our procedures are capable of detecting imregularitias,
including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group's documentation of their policies and procedures
relating to fraud and compliance wilh laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
iregularities.

We cbtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewaorks that the group operates in. and identified the key laws and regulations that:

« had o direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These Included; the UK Companies Act, relevant
tax legislation: and

do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the group's ability 1o eperate or to aveid a
material penalty.

We discussed amang the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant infemal speciaiists such as tax, valualtions. and [T
regarding the opporiunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occurin the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potentiat for fraud in the following areas, and our specific procedures performed to address
them are described below:

the risk that any impairment review in refation to goodwill balances has not been camed out appropriately: to address this risk, independent valuations
experts have analysed inputs to the goodwill model and discount rates, management assumptions and forecasts have been critically evaluated and
challenged to assess reasonablensass, mathematical accuracy of management's model has been tested, and sensitivity analysis has been performed
including recalculation of heodrocms

the risk that revenue amounts have been recorded inaccurately or recognised in the wrong peried [resulting in a misstolement to the accrued revenue
o balanca): In order to address this risk, we abtained the reconciliation between revenue accrued for at year end. and iimesheets submitied after year end,
relating to the current reporing period Timesheets submitted after year end have been vouched on a sample basis.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK}, we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond 1o the risk of management ovemde. In addressing the
risk of fraud through management ovende of controls, we tested the appropriatenass of journal entries and ofher adjustments: assessed whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that
are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Aceounts 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Nash
Squared Holdings Limited

For the 12 month peried ended 31 January 2022

Report on the audit of the financial statements continued

In addition to Ihe above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess complhance with provisions of relevant laws and regulalions
described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

performing andglytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of materal misstatemeant due to fraud;

enguirng of monagement and external legal counsel conceming actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations; and

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004
tn our opinion, based on the work underiaken in the course of the audit:

the infarmation given in the strategic report and the directors’ repon for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial stalements; and

« fhestrategic repont and the directors’ repeont have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requiremenis.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group ang of the parent company and their environment gbtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matfers if, in our opinion:

adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received from brancheas not
visited by us: or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made: or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our cqudii.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report fs made solely to the company's members, as ¢ body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has baen
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume respansibility 1o anyone other than the company and the company’s members as ¢ body,
for our cudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Peter Saunders (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitie LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

Date:  26-Moy-22

Ndsh Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts

2022



Financia! Statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

12 <

2022 201
Notes £ 000 £ 000
Revenue 679,428 566,647
Cost of sales {559.878) (470,797}
Gross profit I3 119,550 95,850
Ctherincome i1 159 1,551
Ejﬁrgiﬁqisirrqﬂvegxfpenses B e L {100,931 (87,35717)7
Operating profit before exceptional items 18,778 10,050
Excepfionalitems ) - B 10 7 (1,293) {5.372)
Operating profit 8 17,485 4,678
Finance costs 7 (1.714) {1.938)
Exceptional finance costs 10 (30) o ”(7271?7)
Profit before tax 15,741 2,523
Income tax {charge) / credit B 13 (2,641?_“ 1_,7?5
Profit for the period 13,100 4,308
-
Consolidated Statement of Other
»
Comprehensive Income
For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022
As restated*
2022 2021
£ 000 £' 000
Profit for the period 13.100 4,308
Foreign currency franslation differences 1,084 (1.272)
Cther comprehensive i”CCI”P for the perioﬁdr ) 1,084 (1.272)
14184 3,034

Total comprehensive profit for the period attributable to owners of the Company

* Note 32

Nash Squared Heldings Limited
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13 Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Company Number: 11464274

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 January 2022 As Restated”
2022 2021
Notes £ 000 £ 000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 15 122,801 130,126
Property, plant and equipment 16 4,185 5818
Right-of-use qssets 17 9,200 2615
Loaons receivable from group undertakings 25 995 845
Loan receivable 3% 1.924 1,934

141,805 148,338

Current assets

Trade ond other receivables i8 164,046 154,8%0
Current income tax assets 13 750 -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 30,221 21,684

195,017 174,574
Total assets 336,822 324912
LIABILITIES

Current liabililies

Trade and other payables 20 [157,094) (149,865)
Current income tax liabilities 13 - {1,322)
Deferred tax liobilities 13 {1,068) {1.544)
Borrowings 30 {40,177} [37.108)
Short-term lease liabilities 17 {7.807) {6.164)
Deferred consideration 3] {6,758) (7.190)
(212.704) (203.193)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings ap 15,135) {18,443]
Long-term lease liabilities 17 (2,472} (3,743)
Loans payable to group undertokings 25 {1.112] 912}
Deferred consideration ay B (6,644)
Deferred tax liabilities 13 [7.584) (7,311)
(26,303) (37,053)
Tolal liabilities (239,207) (240,24%)
Net assels 97,615 84,6448
EQUITY
Ordinary shares 22 1 1
Share premium 29 10,000 10,000
Fair value and other non-distributable reserves 23 15,380 15.380
Other distributable reserves 23 67,9469 47,969
Cumulative translation reserve 23 (2.222) 13,308}
Retained earmings o4 6,487 (5,378)
Total equity 7,615 B4 466
Note 32

The consolidated financial statements on pages 12 - 47 were appreoved by the board and authorised for issue onits behalf by Chris Tilley.

Daote: 26-May-22

Chris Tilley (A e

Director
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Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Falr value
and other
non- Other Cumuiative

share distibutable  gistributable  translation Retalned el

premium raserves reserves reserve earnings Tota

£ 000 £' 000 £' 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000

Balance at 1 February 2020 15,380 67,949 (2,034) {2.124) 72,192
Profit for the period - - - - 4,309 4,309
Currency translation adjustments - - - {922) - (922}
Restatement (Note 32) - - - (850 - (350)
Total comprahensive income for the period - - - (1 272} B 4E? ) 3,038
Shares issued during the pericd 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Dividends paid T - - - 77£67?]'7 {§§2)
Balance at 31 January 2021 10,000 15,380 67,9469 (3.306) {5.378) 84,664
Profit for the period - - - - 13.100 13,100
Currency transtation adjustmants o - - 1084 - 1.084
Total comprenensive income for the period - - - 1 -Q84 ___E‘}_'_PO 14,184
Dividends paid - o o _____( 1 12_35) {1.235)
Batance at 31 January 2022 10,000 15,380 67,9467 (2,222) 6,487 97.415
Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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15 Fincancial Statements
Consolidated Siatement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the 12 menth period ended 31 January 2022

2022 2021

Notes £'000 £ 000
Profit before tax o o o o o 1 5741 2,523
Adjustments for:
- depreciation 16 6,948 7,154
- amortisation 15 6,824 4,079
- profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16 (161} -
- finance income 1 {129) {76}
- finance costs 7 1.714 1,934
- exceptional finance costs 10 30 219
- LTIP non-cash movement o S 200 -
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital - 31167_ _ 17.835
Changes in working capital:
- (increase) /decrease in tfrade and other receivables 8 {9,016} 2%.866
- increase/{decrease) in tfrade and other payables 20 7.230 [3.152)
- decrease in provisions o S 21 - (304)
Cash flows from operating activities 29.381 44,245
Income tax paid o S 13 7 ”W(i.%é) {2,437}
Net cash generated from operating aclivities o 25,355 41_.808
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 16 {2.640) (2.361)
Interest received B 129 76
Payrent of deferred consideration 10 {6,736) {194)
Acquisition of subsidiary - [16,105]
Cash acqguired in acguisition of subsidiary o 7 - 1,186
Net cash used in investing activities o (9.267) (17.398)
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease caopital repayments 17 {5.001) (5.147)
Loars given fo group undertakings 25 [150] -
Proceeds from group undertakings 25 - 568
Interest paid 7 {1.435) {1,539)
Exceptional finance costs 10 (30) (219)
Proceeds from share issue 272 - 10,000
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 29 - 5,769
Repayment of long-term borrowings 29 (3,309} {1,917)
Increasef(decrease) in short-term borrowings 29 3.068 {27.445)
Equity dividends paid ) 14 11,235} -
Net cash used in ﬂncmc_il_-l_g activities (8,992) (19,930)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,996 4,480
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,684 17,655
Exchange movements on cash and cash equivatents ?f” (451}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30,221 21,684

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annuat! Report & Accounts 2022



Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

1. General information
Nash Squared Holdings Ltd {*the Company') and its subsidiaries {together ‘the Group') is a leading provider of specialist recruitment and outsourcing solutions.
The Group has offices in the United Kingdom, Eurcpe, the United States and Asia Pacific,

The Company is @ private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdem and registered in England and Wales. Its registered address is 3 Noble
Street. London EC2V 7EE.

For the period ended 31 January 2022 the following subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to exemption from audit under s479A of the Companies Act
2004 relnting to subsidiary companics. As parenl he Group has provided a guarantee undertaking under s479C.

NashTech Limited {Company Number 0983487 3)
Nash Squared Ltd {Company Number 033207%0)

1.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been preparad in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {1FRSs').
The financial statements have also been prepared in accordonce with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements
comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial assets and financial iabilities that are
measured af revalued amounds or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements of the parent Company are prepared under Finencial Reperting Standaid (*FRS'} 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

The Company has adopted the requirements of The Companies, Partnerships. and Groups {Accounts and Reports] Regulations 20135.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards
The Graup has considered the following new standards, interpretations and amendments 1o published standards that are effective for the Group for the
financial period beginning 1 February 2021 and concluded that they are either nof relevant to the Group or that they would not have a significant effect on
the Groug's financial statements other than disclosures:

Standard Description Effective Date
:.ZRSS;; FRS 7. IFRS 9. 1FRS 16, Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform } January 2021
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts I January 2021
IFRS 14 Amendment 10 extend the exemption from assessing whether a COVID-17-related rent | Aprit 2021

concession is o lease modification

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Repoit & Accounts
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17 Financial Statements
Notes to the Consalidated Financial Stafements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

2. Adoption of new and revised standards confinued

The following new standards. interpretations and amendments 1o published standards and interpretations which are relevant to the Group have been issued

but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 February 2021 and have not been adopted early.
These standards. inferpretations ond amendments to published standards and interpretations are not expected to have o material effect on the Group's

financial statements:

Standard Description Effective Date
IFRS 1 Amengmeﬂrs resulting from Annual Improvements 1o IFRS Standards 2018~2020 {subsidiary as | Janucry 2022
a first-time adopter)

IFRS 3 Amendments updating a reference 1o the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
IFRS 4 Amendments regarding the expiry date of the deferral approach 1 January 2023
1481 Amendments regarding the classification of liatilities 1 January 2023
IAS 8 Amendments regarding the definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
IAS 12 Amendments regarding deferred tax on leases and decommissioning abligations 1 January 2023

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

{a) Going concern
The directors have. at the time of approving the financial statements, o reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. The Group have performed assessments of
the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on going concen and the details of these assessrents are discussed in the directors report on page 6. Accordingly the Groun
continues o adeopt the going concern basis of Aceounting in prepaning tha finunciat slatemens.

{b} Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the resulls of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up from 1 February 2027 to 31 January 2022
and are based on the consistent accounting policies disclosed herein.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control aver the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Al
intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity. income, expensas and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the Group are eliminated on
consclidation.

where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with the Group's accounting

policies.

(c} Business combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration fransferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is caiculated as the sum of the acguisition-date fair values of assets fransfered by the Group, liabilities incured by the Group 1o the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acguiree. Acquisitionrelated costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incumred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the lighilities assumed are recognised at their tair value ot the acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets oriiabilities related 1o employes benefit arangements are recognised and measured in accordance with 1AS 12
and IAS 19 respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arangements of the acguiree or share-based payment arangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 al the acquisition date; and

e Gssetfs (or disposal groups) thal are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are measured in accerdance with that Standard.

Goodwill Is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration fransfened, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acauirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree {if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. . afier reassessment. the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acguired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transfered, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously hefd interest in the
acquiree {if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profif or loss a3 a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transterred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transfered in ¢ business combination. Changes in fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement perod' (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date} about facts and circumstances that exsted ot the acguisition date.

The subisequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingant consideration that do not qualify as measurement penod adjustments depends on
how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as eguity is not remeasured af subseguent reporting dates and ifs
subsequent setlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

when a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held inlerests {including joint operations] in the acguired entity are remeasured fo
its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any. is recognised in profit orloss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such freatment would be
appropriate if that interest were dispased of.

If the nitial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting pericd in which the combination cccurs, the Group reports
provisianal amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above),
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, 1o reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have offected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continuved

{d} Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed forimpairment at least annually, For the purpose of impairment testing, goedwill is allocated 1o each of the Group's
cash-generating units expected ta benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units 1o which goodwill hos been allocated are tested for
impairment annually, or more freciently when therc is an ircication thal the unit may be impaired. If an impairment is required the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then 16 the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subseqguent period.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attibutable amount of gooawillis included in the determination of the profit orloss on dispesal.

{e} Revenve recognilion

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consigeration received ar receivable for the supply of services. net of value added tax. rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revanue arsing from permanent placements is recognised on acceptance of the candidate or on start date, subject to the contractual agreement. Provision
is made for the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual pericd.

Executive recruitment and assignment fees are recognised as services are provided, typically in two stages: shortlist and placement fee under new revenue
recognition accounting standard IFRS 15. Provision is made for the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual
period.

The Group derives ifs revenue in the contract services and inferim businesses on a time and materials basis. It is recognised as services are rendered as
validated by receipt of a client-approved timesheet or equivalent. Where the Group is acting as a principal, tumover represents amounts billed for the
services, inclusive of the remuneration costs of the workers.

For fixed price development work, revenue is recegnised on the percentage completion basis. using pre-specified milestones or a client sign-off to tigger
revenue recognition and the estimate of profit. Revenue from business process outsourcing is recognised as services are rendered, based on a time and
materals basis.

Revenue anticipated., but not invoiced. at the balance sheet date is accrued on the balance sheet as accrued income. Revenue invoiced bul not earned at
the balance sheet date is recorded as a liability as defered income.,

(e){i} IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The Group adopted IFRS 15 from § November 2018 IFRS 15 introduced a five-step approach in measuring and recegnising revenue from confracts and
replaced 1AS 18 'Revenue’ and related interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a cusiomer obtains control of the goods or services.

The Group continuously monitors and performs a detailed review of confracts, to determine the timing of the transfer af control in each of ifs service lines,

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group derives a significant proporion of ifs revenue from the provision of temperary workers to clients. Whether the fullinvoiced amount is recognised gross
{inclusive of the costs of the temporary workers), or net {exclusive of costs of the warkers) depends on whether the Group acts s principal or agent. IFRS 15
moves away from the *risks and rewards' concept of revenue recognition used by IAS 18 'Revenue’ 1o a concept of *transter of contral’. Iis core principle is
whether the good or service is controlled by the entity prior to delivery to the client. For the purposes of determining whether an entity acts as an agent or
principal. IFRS 15 provides indicators of where control may exist. Significantly. these indicators do not include credit sk as an indicator that an enfity is acting
as a principal.

Temporary contractors

where the Group has the primary responsibility to deliver and fulfil the promise to provide contractors to the client, this indicates that the entity controls the
service before it is fransferred to the client. This includes the acceptability of the service meeting the client's specifications. The Group is acting as principal,
Revenue recognised is the gross amount billed to the client for the services of the temporary workers, This includes revenues from the placement of temporary
contracters where the Group has a contract managemant services contract with the client. Revenue recognition therefore remains consistent with the curent
policy under IAS 18,

Contract management services — temporary contractors arranged by third party agencles

The Group acls as an agent when its primary responsibilily is fo provide administrative support to clients, acting as an intermediary between two parties. The
Group does not control the service provided to the client as the primary responsibllity to deliver the services 1o the client sits with a third party agency.
Revenue is recognised as the commission only (exclusive of costs of the worker).
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(eXi} IFRS 15 'Revenue from Confracts with Customers’ continued

Revenue earned on a retained basis

Revenue for permanent executive recruiiment and assignment fees is based on o percentage of a candidate’s remuneration package, recognised over time
as the services are provided. Under IFRS 15 recruitment and assignment fees are considered as one performance obligation, delivered over ime. When
revenuc is recognised over time. it is necessary ta determing [he enlily's perforrmance towards satisfaction of the performance obligation. Revenue can
therefore not be recagnised until the entity has performed a service that will take it closer to fulfiling the performance obligation.

Commissions

Under 148 18, Incremental costs incured in obtaining a contract (such as sales commissions) are expensed as incurred. However, under IFRS 15, these costs are
recognised as an osset and amortised over the life of the contract if they are expected to be recovered from the client. Given the short-term nature of the
Group's contracts, the Group elected to lake the practical expedient offered under IFR$ 15 for contracts less than 12 months, allowing commissions to be
expensed s incurred.

{f) Investments
Investments in associated undertakings ['ossociated companies’) are stated at the amount of the Group's share of net assets.

(g) Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipmaent is stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment foss.

Depreciation is recognised 5o as to write off Ihe cost or valuation of assets less thelr resicuc) values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the
following bases:

Leasehold improvements term of the legse
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 5Years

Office equipment S5 Years

Computer equipment 3-10Years

Motor vehicles 25% reducing balance

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of anitem of property, plant or equipment is determined gs the
difference between the sale proceeds and the canying amount of the asset and is recogrised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment purchased to deliver outsourcing projects, which have been recharged to clients at cost, remain the legal property of the
Group. The cost of the asset is capitalised within cument assets and charged to cost of sales over the contract length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Forthe 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued

{h) Lleases

This note sets ouf the Group's IFRS 16 cecounting policy.

IFRS 16

The Group applies IFRS 16 Leases (qs issued by the IASB in January 2016).

IFRS 14 introduced new or amended requirements with respect 1o lease cccounting. it introduced significant changes to the lessee accounting by removing
ihe distinclion belween operating and finance lease requirements and requires the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at cormmencement

for all leases, except for shor-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee cccounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have
remained largely unchanged. Tne iImpact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group's consclidated financial statements is described below.

The Group elected fo adopl IFRS 14 ‘Leases'. applied from 1 Nevember 2018, using the madified refrospective gpproach, under which the right-of use assetis
measured at the same amount as lease lability on the date of initial application {1 Novermber 2018). adjusted only for any prepaid or accrued lease payments
recognised in balonce sheet on that date under IAS 17 ‘leases’.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any inilial direct cests and an estimate of asset
retirament chligations, less any lease incentives. Subsequently, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment lossas, and are adjusted for cartain remeasurements of the lease liability. Depreciation is calculated on @ straight-ine basts over the
length of the [ease.

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 14 not to reassess whether a contract is or confains a lease. Accordingly. the
definition of a iease in accordance with 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 will cantinue to be applied to those leases entered by subsidiaries before 1 November 2018.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the
customer has the right to cantrol the use of an identified asset for a peicd of time in exchange for consideration,

The Group appiies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out In IFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered into or medified on or after 1 November 2018
twhetheritis a lessor or a lessee in the lease conltract).

impact on lease accounting

Operating leases

IFRS 14 changes how the Group accounts for leases previcusly classified as operating leases under IAS 17,
Applying IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below}, the Group:

a} Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consclidated statement of financial position. initially measured at the present value
of future lease payments;

b

Recognises depreciation of ight-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilties in the consolidated income statement: and

o

Separates the total amount of cash paid inte a principal porion (presented within financing activities) and inferest (presented within
operating activities) in the consolidated income statement.

Laase incentives [e.g. free rent period) are recognised as part of the measuremant of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they
resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive liability, amortised os a reduction of rental expense on a straightine basis.

Under IFRS 14, ight-of-use assets are lested forimpairment in accordance with IAS 34 Impairment of Assets. This replaces the previous requirement lo recognise
G provision for onerous lease cantracts,

For short-term leases [lease ferm of less than 12 months] and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and office fumiture}, the Group has opted
1o recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by IFRS 16, This expense is presented within other expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit and toss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued
IFRS 16 'Leases’ continued

Impact on Lessee Accounting

finance leases

The main difference between IFRS 16 and IAS 17 wilh respect 1o assets formerly held under a finance lease is the measurement of residual value guarantees
provided by a lessee to a lessor, IFRS 14 requires that the Group recognises as part of its lecse liakility only the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as required by 1A3 17. This change did not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial stalements.

(i} Foreign currencies
The individual financial staterments of each Group company are presented in the cumrency of the primary economic environment in which it operates {its
functional curency). For the purpose of the consalidoted financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group company are expressed in
sterling. which is the functional curency of the Company, and the presentation cumency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional curency (foreign cumencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the fransactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign cumencies are re-translated at the rates prevdiling at that date. Nor-rmonetary items canied at fair value that are denominated in
foreign cumencies are Iranslated at the rates prevailing af the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary ifems that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a forelgn curency are not re-transiated.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liakilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet dote. Income and expense items are fransiated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly duiing that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising. if any. are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

Cn the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in a separate component of equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustmeants arfsing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabllities of the foreign entity and franslated af the
closing rate. Exchange differences aiising are recognised in ather comprehensive income.

{i) Intangible assets
Intangible assels which are acquired separately, or through a business combination, are camed ot cost less accumulated amertisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful fives. The estimated useful life and amertisation method are
reviewed af the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The Group does not
have any assets, other thon goodwlll, with infinite useful lives. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Davelopment costs are capitalised as an intangible asset if all of the requirements of 1435 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ are met. The armount initially recognised for
internally generated intangitle assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition crtera fisted
abave. Where nc intemally generated infangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, intemally generated intangible assets are reported af cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis ¢s intangible assets that are acquired separately.

As part of the acguisition during the perad, the tollowing separately identfiable assels were identified:

Customer relationships 8- 14 Years
Brands 1-10Years
Internally developed software & Years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(k) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangiole assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment 1035, f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if anyl. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the assef's camying amount exceeds its
recorvarnble amount. Assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separalely identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units).

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of sale and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future caosh flows are
discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, bt so that the
increased camying amount does not exceed the erginal carrying value prior to any impairment charges.

() Financiatinstruments

Financial assets and labilities are recogrised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised when the Group's confractual rights to the cash flows expire or the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
the financial asset. Financial liakilities are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Financial assels

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments ithat are not quoled in an aclive market are classihed as 'loans and
receivables'. Loans cand receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective inferest rate, except for short-term receivables where the recogrition of interest would be immateiial. For trade receivables, genarally
this results in recognition at nominal value less any allowonce for doubtful debts.

Financial assets which are not classified as loans and receivabiles, but do not meet the held to collect business model and contractual cash flow criteria as set
out in IFRS ¢ are classified as 'fair vaive through other comprehensive income' ['FYOCT). A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset. Financial assets in this category are classified as current assets. All other financial assets that
cannot be classified under amortized cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL'}.

Financial liabilities

Financial iabiltias are classified as either FVTPL or 'other financial Kabilities'. A financial katility is classified as FYTPLIf it is held for troding or specifically
designated as such ta eliminate or sigrificantly reduce o measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arse. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the profit and loss.

Cther financial liailities, including bormowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of fransaction costs. Cther financial iabilities are subsequently measured
at amorised cost Using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is o methoed of
calculating the amortised cost of o financial iability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liakility, or, where appropriate. a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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—Notestothe Consaolidatéd Financial Statements

—Ferthe-12-month-perrod-ended-31Janvuary 2022

3. significant accounting policies continued

(I}(i) IFRS ¥
The Group applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {as revised in July 2014) and the related consequential amendments to other IFRS Standards in these financial
statements. IFRS ¢ provides for the following:

a) The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial iabilities:
b} Impairment of financial assets; and
c] General hedge accounting.
Details of these new requirements as well as theirimpact on the Group's consalidated financial statements are described below.

The Group has applied IFRS § in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group has assessed ifs existing financial assels and financial liabilities in terms of the requirements of
IFRS 9} is 1 Movember 2018, Accordingly. the Group has applied the requirements of IFRS ¢ to instruments recognised as at 1 November 2018.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS ¢ are required to be measured subsequently at amortised cost or fgir value on the basis of the
entity's business model for managing the financial assets ang the confractuai cash flow characternstics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that are held to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. are measured subsequently at amorised cost

Debt instruments thal are held to collect the contractual cash flows and 1o sell the debf instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and inferest on tha principal amount cutstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income
[FVTOCH.

All other debt investments and equity investmenis are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or foss [FVTPL).

Despite the aforegeing, the Group may make the following imevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

a) The Group may imrevocably elect 1o present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination in other comprehensive income; and

k) The Group may irevocably designate a debt investrnent that meets the amortised caost or FYTOCI criteria as measured at FYTPLIF doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

In the current period, the Group has not designated any debt investments that meet the amortised cost or FVTOC! criteda as measured at FYTPL,

When a debt investment measured at FYTQCH is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at FYTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative
gain of lass previously recognised in other comprehensive income is subsequently transferred to retained earnings.

Debt instruments that are measured subsequently of amortised cest or at FVTOC! are subject to impairment.

The directors of the Group reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial assefs as at 1 November 2018 based on the facts and circumstances that
existed at that date and concluded that the initial application of IFRS 9 has had the following Impact on the Group's financicl assets as regards their
classificalion and measurement:

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturty and loans and receivables under IAS 32 that were measured at amortised cost continue to be measured at
amortised cost under IFRS 7 as they are held within a business model to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cuistanding.

None of the other reclassifications of financial assets have had any impact on the Group's financial pesition. profit or foss, other compreéhensive income or total
comprehensive income in the perod.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 reguires an expected credit loss model, rather than an incurred credit loss model to be applied. This requires the assessment of the expected credit loss
on each class of financial asset al each reporting date. This assessment should take inta consideration any changes in credit risk since the initial recognition of
the financial asset. The main class of financial asset held by the Group are trade receivables, which are short-term in nature.

The directors of the Group have reviewed and assessed existing financial assets using reasonable and supportable information 1o determine credit risk and
concluded that there is ne material financial impact on the Group.

{m} Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity share capital {own shares), the consideration paid is
deductible from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled. reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued. any consideration received is included in equity attributable to the Company's equity holders.

(n) Tax

Current tax

The tax curently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reporied in the income statement because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or deduclible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
ligbility for current tax is calcutoted using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis the tax expected 1o be payable or recoverable on difierences between the carying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used In the compultation of taxable profit, ond is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferad fax
liobilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assefs are recoegnised o the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the femporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of geodwilt or from the initial recagnition (ather than in a business combination) of other assets and fiabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Defered tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temparary differences arising on investments in subsidicries and associates, and inferests in joint veniures,
except where the Group is able 1o control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the termporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, Defermed tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such invesiments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences ond they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of defered tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferraed tax is calculated at the tax rates thot are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is relised based on tax lows and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in
which case the deferred taxis also decalt with in other comprehensive income.

(o) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period endsd 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(P} Empioyee benefils

Pension obligalions

Wherever possible, the Group operates defined contribution pension schemes, under which the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities. The
Group hos no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions. Pension costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the perod in which
they arise. In Belgium and Switzerland, legislation requires the operation of pension schemes which contain an element of defined benefit, the obligations
under which are fully insured and there are no unrecorded liabilities. Amounts related to these schemes were considered by the Group to be immaterial during
the period thus Group accounted for these as defined contibution schemes.

Share-based payment fransactions

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to profit or loss over the vasting period. Nen-
market vesting conditions are taken info account by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that,
ulimately. the cumulative amount recogrised over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventualiy vest.

Market vesting conditions are factored info the fair value of the options grantfed. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for the failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also takes into account non-vesting conditions. These are either factors beyond the conirol of either party (such as a target based
on an index) or factors which are within the controt of one or other of the parties (such as the company keeping the scheme open or the employee maintaing
any contributions requiraed by the scheme).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminating the employment of current employees
according te a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.

Bonus plan
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged.

Government grants

Govemnment grants are accounted for under the accruals model. A grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incured or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support 1o the entity with no fulure related costs is recognised in other income in the period it becomes
receivable. This includes the Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The Group has not benefited from other forms of govemment assistance or
recelved grants relating to expenditure on non-current assets.

{a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
requited to settle that obligation and o refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required 1o setile the present obligation ot the balance sheet date, taking into account the nsks and uncerlainties surounding
the obligation. Discounting is applied only when the effect is material.

(r} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are wiitten off as incurred. invoice discounting fees are recognised as incured.

{s) Working capital facilities

The Group has access 1o working capital finance facilities provided by its bankers in the form of a confidential tfrade receivables finance facility whichis
secured by a floating charge over the Group's assels. The borrowings under ihis are included within current liabilities and described as borowings on the
Group's consalidated statement of financial position and the facility is secured specifically against the Group's trade recelvables. Trade receivabies are
included within frade receivables in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022



> 27 Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month pericd ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(t} Exceptional tems
Exceptional items are significant items considered outside the nomal course of business and are presented separately on the face of the consolidated
staterment of profit and loss due to their nature and/for size with furiher infarmation included in the notes to the financial statemeants. The separate reporting of
such itemns helps 1o provide a better indication of the Group's underlying business perfformance as it enables shareholders to see the results of the ongoing
trading operations.

I the reporting of financial information, the Group uses certain measures that are not required under IFRS. Management considers that these additional
measures {commonly refered 1o as 'alternative performance measures' or 'APMs') provide shareholders with valuable additional information on the
performance of the business. These measures are consistent with those used internally, and are considered critical to understanding the financial performance
of the Group. APMs are also used to enhance the comparabitity of information between reporting periods, by adjusting for exceptional or items considered 1o
be distortive to trading performance which may affect IFRS measures, to aid shareholders in understanding the Group's performance. These APMs are not
intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures. The only APM presented by the group is for exceptional items [Note 10},
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

4. Financial risk management

Financing

The Group's pringipg! financial instruments are averdrafts, cash and shor-temm deposits, an invoice discounting facility and a senior finance debt syndicated
facility. The Group has other financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations. Acquisitions are financed
through @ mixture of operating cash flow and equity. Working capital finance for day-to-day requirements is provided through operating cash generation.
invoice discount facilities and small short term overdraft facilities. where applicable, funds are then made available for the financing of the Group's
subsidiaries through intercompany [oans.

Objectives, policies and strategies

The most significant treasury exposures faced by the Group are raising finance, managing interast rates and curency positions as well as investing surplus cash
in high-quality assets. The Board has established clear parameters, including levels of authority, on the type and use of financial instruments 1o manage these
exposures. Transactions are only undertaken if they relate to underlying exposures and cannot be viewed as speculative,

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are 1o safeguard the Group's abllity to continue as a going concem in order to provide retumns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital for the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital fo shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

2022 2023

£ 000 £' 000

Borrowings 55312 55,550
Total equity o - - 7‘26175 7 o 84,666 B

Total funding 152,927 140,214

Gearing rafio % 36.2% _ 39.6%
Interest rate risk management
The Group's policy is to minimise interest charges through cash pooling and active cosh management.

Market risk and foreign exchange risk monagement

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rales and interest rates. The Group's policy is to minimise
foreign currency risk. The Group manages its exposure on equity investments in overseas subsidiares through foreign cumency borrowings. The cumency risk of
holding assels and labilities in foreign curencies across the Group is managed by partially matching foreign curency assets with foreign currency figbilities.

The Group's operating profit exposure to foreign cumency translation is primarily in respect of the US dollar and the Eura,

Credt risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, It has policies in place to ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an appropricle
cradit history and historically thera are low levels of debt wiite-off throughout the Group. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers. spraead
across diverse industies and geographical areas. The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to a single customer.
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

4. Financial risk management continued
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cosh and committed credit facifities. Management monitors roling forecaosts of the Group's

liguidity reserve {comprising undrawn borowing facility, cash and invoice discounting) on the basis of expected cash flow. All borowings are short term other
than the syndicated senior finance facility, The Group's main invoice finance facility was most recently renewed in November 2018,

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group's accounting policies the directors are required to make judgements {cther than those involving estimations) that have a
significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised in the period In which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both curent and future
perods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's acceountfing policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Share based payments

The Group has exercised judgement in determining that the share option scheme which is based on the future sale price of the Group by the curent
shareholders reflects performance-based remuneration which should pass through the income statement. Management has estimated the value of the share
aption scheme at the date of initial grant and will vest the amount trough share option charge on the income statement up to the expected exercise date.
The exercise date used is also a management estimate.

Purchase price allocation

As part of the acquisition purchase price allocation management was required to make various judgements and estimations in relation 1o the values ploced
on intangible assets and goodwill allacated 1o each cash-generating unit. Management utilised various market analysis, and valuation technigques as well as
forward-looking forecasts as at the time of acquisition which are inherently judgemental.

The presentalion of selected items as excepfionat items
The Group applies judgement in identifying the significant non-recuring items of income and expense that are recognised as excepltional to help provide an
indication of the Group's underlying business performance. See note 10 for further details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions conceaming the future. and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporing period, that may have a significant fisk of causing
a materal adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill and investments

Determmining whether the carrying value of goodwill or an investment is impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units fo
which goodwill or investment has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. These include forward-looking forecasts which are inherently
judgemental. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 January 2022 was £69.5m. The carrying value of the investment held in the parent company at 31 January
2022 was £108.6m. The key assumphions and sensitivities In the value-in-use colculations are set out in nate 15

5. Segment information
IFRS & *Operating Segments’ requires disclosure of information about the Group's operating segments. It requires a management approach under which
segment information is presented on o similar basis to that wsed for internal reporting purposes. The chief operating decision maker in the business has been
identified as the Group Board. Services provided by each reportable segment are Leadership Services. Technology Recruitment and Sofufions.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
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6. Segment information centinued

The Group Board analyses segmental information as follows:

Revenue 2022 2021
Geographical £' 000 £ 000
United Kingdom & ireland 308,770 274,181
Mainland Eviope ) 215422 198,128
Benelux o T ]5%’.610 7 145756977
Nordics 20,350 15,652
CentrciEwope 37,462 36,967
United States T _11;3_12 S 52,9;137 i
Asia Pacific 39,924 41,395
Total revenue 679,428 546,647
Service Line -
Technology recruitment - - gsl'g,SBS - 55-55_“
Techneology Solutions 55,097 78,460
Leadership services 27.796 20918
Total revenue N I 679,-42_3_- - _5;6,-647
Operating profit and profit before tax
Geographical
United Kingdom & Ireland 12,289 3,846
Mainland Evrope i - 7,417 8,539
Benelux - O eomd O esis
Nordics 135 (517}
CentralEurope 298 541
United States - 6,31-34_- - 527 R
Asia Pacific 1,948 3.669
Total 28,0338 14,601
Service line S
Technology recruitment - . 26:2687 N 7 Hé5g a
Technology Solutions 6.706 5,257
Leadership services 724 (509}
Total o - 28038 16,601
Group and central service costs L (5.260) (6,551}
Total operating profit before exceptional items - ;3778 1_00_50
Exceptionalitemns o (1,293) (5,372)
Total operating prolit o - 1_7:185 ) 746787
Finance costs o (-1- ,;14_) ({9:;6)
Exceplional finance costs ) o (30) {219}
- 15741 253

Profit/ (loss) before tax
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7. Finance costs

2022 2021
£ 000 £' Q00
MNet interast on bank berrowings 1.435 1,540
Interest expense on lease liabilifes S B _279_ o 39?“_
Finance costs 1.714 1,936
8. Operating profit
The following items have keen included In ariving at operating profit from continuing operations:
2022 2021
£ D00 £ 000
Bad debt provision and debts directly written off 140 1.030
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,124 2,194
Depreciation onright of use assets 4,824 4,959
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,824 6,079
Operating lease rentals payable 1,322 255
Loss/{profit) on foreign exchange 45 [24)
9. Auditor's remuneration
The analysis of the cuditor's remuneration is as follows:
2022 2021
£ Q00 £' 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's Annual Report 207 185
409 375
Fees payable to the Company's Guditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation o o
Total audit fees 816 560
614 540

Totaltees

No services were performed pursuanf to contingent fee arrangements. There were no other non-aqudit fees incurred in the current period.
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10. Exceptional tems

Excepfional items

2022 20

£' 000 £ 000

Acquisition costs - 2,341

Covid-19 related costs - 561

Group transfarmation 284 1,601

Property exit costs 932 -

Optimisation projects 47 814

Other 48 55
To B - S 1293 5372

Total exceptional items

The Group engaged in a number of transformation projects during the year. including the restructuing of relevant divisions and investments in key areas. Costs
incurred for the pericd were £03m,

During the year the Group moved to o new London head office, As aresult of the move, dilapidations, legal and consultancy fees totalling £0.9m were
incurred.

Exceplional finance costs

2022 2021

£ 000 £' 000

Exceptional finance costs 20 219

During the year £0.03m was incurred transifiorning all LBOR loans to the new risk freo rate. SONIA.
11. Otherincome

2022 2021

£' 000 £ 000

Interest received 129 74

Job refention furlough scheme 30 713
Otherincome o o T B

159 1.551

Total other income

As a result of Covid-19 during the period the Graup took advantage of government job retention schemes whereby a portion of salaries were reimbursed for
fuloughed staff. The total benefit for the period was £0.03m {2021: £0.5m).
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12. Employees and directors

Average number of people employed UK & Ireland Evicpe Rest of World Total
Executive directors & - - 4
Sales 235 254 67 556
Administrative 106 21 121 318
Employees included within cost of sales 160 431 1,581 2,112
Total for the 12 month period ended 31 Jﬂnudh;r 2022 447 B 77& T 1,769 2,992 -
Average number of people employed UK & Ireland Europe Rest of World Total
Executive directors 2 - - pi
Sales 244 227 40 531
Administrative 124 81 121 326
Employees included within cost of sales - 374 1,545 1.919
Total for the 12 month peri_oa ended 31 January 2021 | - - o 370 882 o 1,;}25 _;:;E_“
No directors or employess were employed by the company during the period.
2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Cost ol Admin Total Cost of Admin Tolal
sales expenses sales expenses
Total staft costs for the Group £ 000 £ 000 £ 0on £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 48,620 45,184 $3,804 50741 50.454 101,195
Sociatsecurity costs 6,405 8.070 14,475 7.232 6.325 13,558
Pension costs 910 2,382 3,292 1.920 1.253 3173
Total 55935 5563 NS 59893 58033 117926
Directors' emoluments in respect of qualifying services to the Group were as fallows:
2022 200
Directors’ remuneration £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 1,373 582
Pensicn contributions 469 65
Share-bosed payments 0 70
Total director's remuneration - B . 1';;32—_ h 717
Highes! paid director
Aggregate emoluments 4572 300
Pension contributions 41 39
Share-based payments 50 50
Total higheﬁfﬁpaia director T o ’ ) 743 o 389

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, directors’ emoluments above represent the proportion of tofal emoluments paid or payable in respect of
qualifying services.

Dunng the period the directors received no emoluments for non-qualifying services which are required to be disclosed.
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13. Tax
2022 201

£ 000 £' 000
Corporation tax - UK 317 4
Corporation tax - overseas 3,145 2,693
Adjustments in respect of prior periods [654) 463
Total current tax expense ' B -  og08 e
Decrease in deferred tax iability S o _[l 47) _-_{4,945{“_
Total deferred tax credit - - o (ié?) {4,945)
Total tax charge / {credit) 2,641 {1,785)
The tax rate used for the reconciliction above is the corporate tax raie of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) which was in effect the entire penod.
The difference are explained below for the 12 monih period ended 31 January 2022 using the UK standard rate of corporation tax:

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000
Profit / {loss) before fax 15,741 2,523
Tox ot standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.002 2891 a7y
Effects of:
Expenses not deduclible and other permanent items 941 548
Income not faxable - 1725)
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - m
Adjustrments to current tax in respect of prior year adjustments 1654) 443
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances 717 244
Deferred tax adjustrment in respect of prior vears 434 1333)
Profits toxed at overseas rates (211 1133)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset {1.577] (2,347)
Total taxation . o o S N 2.641 ' (1,785)
Current tax:
Taxin the pericd 3,442 2,697
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {654) 463
Total current tox ’ S - T 2,808 h 3'1.;07 a
Delerred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences (1,318 [4.856)
Effect of changes in tox rates on deferred tax balances 717 244
Pricr period adjustment fo deferred tax 434 1333)
Total deferred tax credit LT 7 - (187} R (4,945)
Total tax charge / (crrerdrifr)i S o - 2,641 - (1,785)

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2022



> 35

Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month pericd ended 31 January 2022

13. Tax  confinued

The Finance Act 2020 included legislation to maintain the main rate of UK corporation at 19%. rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020. The change to
the main rate of corporation tax was substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and therefore included in these financial statements. Temparary
differences have been remeasured using these enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the liability is seftled or the assel realised.

The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included an increase to the UK's main corporation tax rate to 25%, which is due to be effective from 1
Apnl 2023, Thase changes were subslunlively enucled ul the balance sheei date and henee heve been reflected in the measurement of deferred tox

balances where applicable.

2022 2021

Deterred tax £ 000 £ 000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred tax liability to be settied after more than 12 months (7.584) (7.311)

Deferred tax liability to be settled within 12 months {1.066) {1,544}

{8.650) [8.855)

Net deferred tax liability ’ o T {8,650) [8,855)

Defered tox assets and liabilities cre offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off cument tax assets against curent tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its cument tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. The iable above

sets out the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes.

The defarred tax position is analysed betow:

Accelerated Accrued

Acquired capital Interest
Intangibles allowances Tax losses charges Cther Total
£ 000 €' 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
1 February 2020 11,611 {46) 611 - 202 [10.844)
Acqguired In acquisition {2,750) - - - R {2,750}
Movement 1.022 0n 938 2,482 504 4,945
Foreign exchange 7 ) R - - _ (206) (206)
31 January 2021 (13,339) (47) 1,549 2,482 500 {8.855)
Movemsnt 830 189 1627) (732) 507 167
Foreign exchange R - - - 38 38
31 January 2022 (12,509) 142 922 1,750 1,045 (8,650)

Defarred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the tempaorary differences, and they are expected o reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and fiakikties are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which they are reclised. The rales enacied or

substantively enacted by the UK Government for the relevant perods of reversal are 19% (2021: 19%}. The rates enacted by the US Government for the relevant
perods of reversal was 26% from 22 December 2017,

Due to tha uncertainty of recoverability, deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses, depreciation in excess of accelerated caopital allowance and deductible
temporary differences of £Nil {2021: £1.8m) have not been recognised.

Deferred tax on infangible assets relates to o deferred tax ability raised on separately identfied intangible assets recognised as part of the acquisition of the
Harvey Nash Group. The balance is released proportionately in line with the amortisation of the underlying intangible assets. £830k was released duning the
period. The acquisition of Latitude34.Inc on 20 October 2020 resulted in an additional defered tax liabilfty raised on intangible assets amounting to £2.6m.
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14. Dividends

The dividends paidin the period were £1.2m (2021: £0.6m). This amounted to 1.68p per share (2021: 0.77p per share). No dividends were proposed subsequent 1o

period end.

2022 20n
£' 000 £' 000
Dividends declared and paid during the period 1,235 562
15. Intangible assets Internally
Customer Brand: Brand: Brand: Brand: Brand; developed
relationships Harvey Nash Alumnl Talentlt Nashtech  Latitude 34 soHware Total
£' 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £' 000 £’ 000 £' 000
Cost
At 1 February 2020 49,300 6,100 1,600 700 i.400 - 1,000 60,700
Acquisitions 12,815 - - - - 281 - 13.096
At 31 January 2021 42,115 4,100 1,600 700 1,400 281 1,000 73,194
‘Acquisiicns L ‘ L S o
At 31 January 2022 62,115 6,100 1,600 700 1,400 281 1,000 73,194
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 February 2020 5.421 763 200 88 175 - 208 7,055
Charge for the 12 month period 4,764 410 160 70 140 168 167 6,079
At 31 January 2021 10,385 1,373 340 158 315 168 375 13,134
Charge for the 12 month period ’ 5,56; 410 140 70 140 113 167 5,824
At 31 January 2022 15,949 1,983 520 228 455 281 542 19,958
Carrying amount
At 31 January 2021 51.730 4,727 1,240 542 1,085 13 625 60,062
At 31 January 2022 46,164 4,117 1,080 472 945 - 458 53,238
Goodwill £ 000
At 1 February 2020 58,577
Acquisitions 17.664
At 31 January 2021 as previously stated 76,243
Prier period adjusiment (Note 32) B i - S C wars)
At 31 January 2021 as restated 70,065
Remeasurement o a B o N [552-J N
At 31 January 2022 69,543
Intangible assets {including goodwill)
At 31 January 2021 (as restated) 130,124
Al 31 January 2022 o o - 122800
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15. Intangible assets  continued

As Restated

The canying amounts of goodwill at acquisition and at period end allocated by cash-generating 31 January
unit 'CGU'} are as follows: 2022 2021
Goodwill £ 000 £ 000
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland 30,762 30762
Tech Recruitment - Belgium 11,700 11,700
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands 7.525 7.525
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe 1.803 1.803
Tech Recruitment - USA 10.986 11,488
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland 1.0346 1,036
Leadership Services - Nordics 1,240 1,240
Solutions - Nashtech 4,511 4,511
S  seses 70065

During the period the goodwill in respect of each CGU was tested forimpairment in acceordance with 145 36 'Impairment of Assats'. All CGLU's were assessed to
have a value-in-use in excess of thelr respective carmying values, thus no impairment adjustments to goodwill were considered necessary.

The assumptions applied in the impairment review are consistent with those applied within the Group's long-term strategic plan, agproved by management
and the Board. The assumptions are based on lalest indusiry forecasts and the expectations of management given their past experience. The key assumptions

in the vaiuedn-use calculations are disclosed below.

Average growth rate In first five

Long-term growth rate

years
Significant cash-generating unit 2022 2021 2022 2021
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland 12.7% 22.0% 2.9% 05%
Tech Recruitment - Belgium 18.6% 19.7% 2.5% 09%
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands 17 4% 21.6% 2.1% 1.4%
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe (13.1%)] 36.1% 27% 1.3%
Tech Recruitment - USA 19.8% 19.7% 4.4% 2.5%
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland 11.3% 42 2% 2.9% 0.4%
Leadership Services - Nordics 22.2% 30.7% 4 4% 2.3%
Solutions - Nashtech 31.4% 12.9% 37% 2.4%

The full five year average has been utilised for all cash generating entities . The terminal growth rate is based on the long-term growth rate for each country

and was on average 3.2% (20211 1.5%). Management believes the forecosts are achievable.

Management has taken the current economic downtumn as a result of Covid-19 inte account and has applied an additional sensitivity percentage 1o ensure

that Goodwill does not need to be impaired should there be a further downiurm.

The pre-tax discount rate used was based on the industry weighted average cost of copital for each country and was on average 15.5% (2021 20.3%].

The Group has caried out a sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests of each cash generahing unit 1o which goodwill has been allocated. Based on this
analysis management believes any reaschable changes in the key assumptions used in the impaiment moda! would not result in any material impairment

charge being recorded in the financial statements.
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Office Furniture, fixtures Computer Motor
Improvements Equipment and equipment equipment vehicles Total
£ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000

Cost
At T February 2020 3.79% 716 1,844 10,730 14 17,107
Additions 109 63 44 2,145 - 2.341
Acquisitions - - 194 - B 194
Disposals () (22) [4) [492) - (519)
Exchange adjustments (11) {38) 8 80 i 40
A1 31 January 2021 S 38% 719 2,088 12463 17 19183
Addifions S is3 1259 2343 - 2460
Disposals {1,438) {402) {94) (1,808 - (3.742)
Exchange adjustments 13} (29) [7) 59 | 11
At 31 January 2022 S 2,428 413 199 13057 18 18,112
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2020 2,253 550 1,532 7.041 16 11.392
Charge for the yeaor 485 92 140 1,459 - 2,194
Acquisitions - - 151 23 - 174
Disposcls " (10) i12) {433) - {456)
Exchange adjustments (1 (10 {(10) 79 1 59
At3l1Janvary2021 _2E Y'Y 1,'521'7 o 778,7167? 17 1_336T
Cherge for theyear - 3 90 1 4'377 o {502 o _2_1 24
Disposals (1.470) (397] {92) (1.622] - (3.581)
Exchange adjustments 15) (14) 9} 48 i 19
‘At31Janvary 2022 150 299 1883 807 18 11927
Carrying amount
At 31 January 2021 1.160 %7 267 4,294 - 5.818
Af31Janvary2022 S e na 133 4%0 - 6185

On 20 October 2020 the Group acquired 100% of Latitude 36 Inc. As ¢ result under IFRS 3: Business combinations the Group acquired all property, plant and
eguipment as at that date.
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17. lLeasesunder IFRS14

Right of
use assels
- Property
£'000
Cost
At 1 February 2020 18,208
Additions 2,416
Acquisitions 1,124
Exchange adjustrents 293
At31Janvary2021 S 204
Additions T T T I - 7757525
Disposals 110,142]
Exchonge Odjustmén"fs o T T T B S S __75-95_}-
At31 Janvary2022 T 7 - Iy
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2020 7.452
Charge for the yaar 4,959
Exchange adjustments 15
at31 lanvary 2021 S ) - 12426
‘Charge for the year - S C sp24
Disposals (10.023)
Exchange adjustments (303)
‘At 31 January 2022 S - o 6924
Carrying amount
At 31 January 2021 2.815
At31 Jonvary2022 T S 9,900
The carmying amount of the lease ability is as foliows: 2022 2021
£ 000 £' 000
Lease liability
Opening balance 2,907 10,867
Additions 5.520 2,388
Acquisifions (122} 1,124
Leose payments 15,6071} (5.147]
Interestincured 279 396
Exchange adjustments {304} 279
Ciosing balance - 10,279 9907
Current 7807 6,164
Non-current 2,472 3,743
Total ’ S Ct0279 9907
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18. Trade and other receivables

2022 2021

£' 000 £ 000

Trade receivables 109,795 102,658

Less: Provision for estimated credit loss {790) {1,048}
- T - S o005 01812

Other receivables 4,251 2774

Prepayments 2.841 2,721

Accrued income 47,249 47,783

- S - S tea0a 154890

Debtor days were 35.2 days (2021: 33.4 days). Debtor days are calculated by reference to outstanding deblors relative te amounts invoiced in the preceding
manths up to the year end.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired, As of 31 January 2022, trade receivables of £38.5m (2021: £40.5m)
were aged over 30 days but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent custorners for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000

1-2 months 23,675 18,945

2-3 months 9,827 12,494
Over 3 months o ﬁ?ﬁ_ i - W;?.O_éﬂ__

o - S - - 38476 40,482

As of 31 January 2022, trade receivables of 0.79m (2021: £1.05m) were impaired and provided for.
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate fo customers who are in difficult economic situations. All the impaired receivables are more than three

months overdue. In the curent petiod, the creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been included in 'administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or |oss. The other classes within frade and other receivables do net contain impaired assets.

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Provisions £ 000
At | February 2020 1.178
Acquired on acquisition 38
Provision raised during the perfod o o - o (7o)
At 31 January 2021 o o o ) o 1046
Provision ufilised during the pericd {256)
arat - ) o o 7 o -796 _

At 31 January 2022
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18. Trade and other receivables continued

Current 30-40 days 60-90 days 0+ days Total
£' 000 £' 000 £ 000 €' 000 £ 000
Default rate 0.00% 1.25% 2.50% 5.00%
Gross carrying amaunt 71,318 23,474 9,827 4,974 109,795
Lifetlme expected credit logs - (295) _(24_(_')_______(249) (790)_
7 - I 71 ,315 - 7772;5871 - 9.581 47&7 o 109,005

The Group has applied the IFRS 2 simplified approach to measuring expected credit tosses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all frade
receivables. Toe measure the expacted credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The maximum exposure 1o Credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable isted above, The Group does not hold any collateral
as security. The currency profile of frade and other receivables is shown below.

2022 2021

£000 £ 000

Sterling 43,039 38,488

Furo 85,736 87702

US Dollar 24,839 18,837

Cthercurrencies o S o 1_0,43?_ o _9.863

164,046 154,890

The directors consider the abiove frade and other receivables 1o be reflected at fair value.
19. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000

Bank balances 30,200 21,673

Petty cash } o 217 ) - Hl

Total 30221 21,484

20. Trade and cther payables

2022 201

£' 000 £' 000

Trade payables 68,267 69,283

Other tax and social security payable 24,9219 17.025

Accruals 61,872 42,213
Other poyables . _ o o 2038 134

157,096 149,845

The directors consider the abeve trade and other payables 1o be reflected at fair value,
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21. Provisions

2022 20
£ 000 £ 000
Cpening Balance - 304
Yilised in the period o P Lo
Closing balance - -

All provisions were ulilised within the 12 months ended 31 January 2021.

22. Share capital
2022 20
£ 000 £ 000
Allotted and fully paid

1 1

73,323,183 (2021: 73,323.183) ordinary shares of 0.001 pence each

During the year ended 31 January 2021 16.000,000 shares at a nominal value of 0007 pence each were issued. The premium arising on issue was £10m.

23. Otherreserves

Fair value and other non-distributable reserves of £15.4m {2021: £15.4m) remain unchanged in the current financial period and include £2.8m relating to a
capital contribution movement as part of the historic share reduction exercise, £11.9m related to 1he fair value of the investment as part of the acquisition
under IFRS3 and the remaining £0.6m related to the movement in fair value of contingent considerations outstanding, all of which took place in prior financicl
periods.

Other distiibutable reserve consists of £67.9m {2021: £67.9m) relating 1o the transfer rom share copital and share premium as a result of the share reduction
undertaken in a prior finoncial period.

Cumulative franslation reserves for the year amounted to £2.22m in deficil [2021: £3.3m in deficit].

24, Retgined earnings

£'000

At 1 February 2020 {9.124)

Profit for the year 4.309
Dividends paid L o _ _ 1562) -

At 31 January 2021 (5.378)

Profit for the year 13.100

Dividends paid [1.235)
y 20 - 7 o o - 6,4-87- )

At 31 January 2022
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25, Group undertakings and related party fransactions

Group undertakings 2022 2021
Included in loans from group undertakings are the following oulstanding balances as at 31 January 2022 £ 000 £ 000

Loans receivable
DOAY Tunds 1 }
The Power of Talent Midco Limited 294 844

Loans payable

The Power of Talent Midco Limited {1.112) (212

DBAY Advisors and DBAY Funds are considered related parties due to their investment in and control of the Group's ultimate parent The Power of Talent Topco
Limited.

24. Subsidiaries
The Group consists of a parent Company, Nash Squared Holdings Limited, incorporated in the UK and registered in England and Wales, and o number of
directly and indirecfly held subsidiaries around the world,

All subsidiary companies are consolidaled.

At 31 January 2022 the Group was a wholly owned subsidiary of The Power of Talent Kartanesi Ltd {company number: 11665541) incorporated and registered in
England and Wales.

The ultimate parent of the Group is The Powert of Talent Topce Limited (company number: 132333C) incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man, and which
prepares consolidated accounts.

The ultimate controlling party is DBAY Advisors Limited {company number: 126150C) incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man.

A full list of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 January 2022 is shown on pages 57 - 53

27. Pensions

The Group operates separate defined contribution pension schemes in ¢l locations. The Group's total contribution to such schemes for the 12 month period
ended 31 January 2022 was £3.2m (2021 £3.1my).

The Group's largest pension scheme is o defined confribution scheme provided by Scottish Widows in the UK. Employer and employee contributions 1o the
scheme range between 4% and 5% depending on the employee’s lengih of service.
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28. Leases

Leases classified under IFRS 14 "Leases”
On adoption, the Group applied a modified retrospective approach under which right-of use assets are recognised and initially measured at the same amount
as lease lability on the date of initial application. iFRS 14 feases are disciosed within note 17,

The lease liability is initially measured ot the present vaiue of leose payments, discounted using the Croup's incremeantal bonuwing 1ale. The lease term
comprises the non-cancellable pefdod of the contract, together with perods covered by an oplion to extend the lease where the Croup is reascnably certain
to exercise that option. Subsequently the lease liability is measured by increasing the canying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, and reducing it
by the lease payments made. The lease liability is remeagsured when the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an exfension or termination
option.

Lease fabilities are shown separately on the consclidated balance sheet in current labilities and non-curment liabilities.

44 <

2022 2022
£' 000 £ 000
Current-ighilities - leases 7.807 6,164
Nan-current liabilities - leases 2,472 3,743
" ' S - 0279 9,907

The Group has elected to apply exemptions for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. Fer these leases the lease payments
are charged te the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operaling lease commitments
The Group has total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following perods:

2022 2022
opery St e
£ 000 £ 000
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:
Within ane year 43 744
Later than one year and less than five years B 476
- S - 3 1420
29 Lloanreceivable
Nash Technologies GmbH
2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000
Upening balance 1,934 1,934
Fareign exchange {10} -
Closing balance S 1924 1934

The Group has o £1.9m (€2.3m) loan receivable from Nash Technologies GmbH included within non-current assets. The rate of interest is three-maonth EURIBOR plus

1.5%. The loan is due to mature on 30 June 2025,
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30 Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank overdraft, invoice discounting and various items such as trade receivables and trade poyables that
arise direcily from its operations. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is approximately equal to their book values.

Additional disclosures are set out in the accounting policies relating to risk management. An explanation of the role that financial instruments have had during
the period in the manngement of the Group's funding liguidity wnd lureign exchange s provided within note 4.

In cccordance with IFRS ¢ "Financial Instruments', the Group has reviewed all contracts and confirmed that none contain embedded derivatives that are
lequired to be assessed and measured as per the requirements set out in the standard. There were no matetial embedded derivatives of 31 lanuary 2022.

Borrowing facilities

Invoice discount facility

At 31 January 2022 the Group has a syndicated invaice discounting facility of £20m. This tacility is allocated across the Group's operations as follows: £38min
the UK [Harvey Nash: £31m. Crimson: £3m, Nashtech: £4m), EUR equivalent of £3.75m in Ireland. EUR equivalent of £30m in the Nethertands. EUR equivalent of
£8.25m in Belgium and the USD equivalent of £10m in the UsA.

The overdratt tacilities are repayable on demand and the invoice discounting facilities are available on a rolling 12-manth basis. The rates on all facilities are
flonting, All conditions precedent to the overdrafi and invaoice discounting were met ot 31 January 2022,

2022 2022 2021 2021
Drawn borrowing facilities (current) 000 £000 ‘ooa £'000
invoice discounting facilities - UK g 17.985 17,985 £ 15,836 15,8354
Invoice discounting facilities - treland € (150 {125) € [687) 1408)
invoice discounting faciiities - Belgium € 3,095 2.578 € 3,432 3,039
Invoice discounting facilities — Netherlands € 15,287 12,734 € 14,007 12,404
Inveice discounting facilities — USA $ 5,152 3,837 % 4174 3,045
Invoice discounting facilities - Crimson £ (141) [141) £ 82 82
Total S - T asses - 33799

2022 2022 20 201
Undrawn borrowing facilities 000 £000 ‘000 £'000
Invoice discounting facilities - UK £ 17.015 17,015 £ 19.164 19,164
Invoice discounting facilities — Ireland € 4,652 3.875 € 6,333 5,608
invaice discounting facilities - Belgium € & 809 5.672 € 7.296 6,461
Invoice discounting focilities — Netherlands € 20,727 17,264 € 19.870 17.596
Invoice discounting facilifies — USA 3 8.277 £.1863 % 6.104 4,454
Involce discounting facilites — Crimson £ 3,141 3.141 £ 2918 2918
Total ST - S saaaz 56,201
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30 Financial instruments continued

Borrowing facilities continued

Senicr fingnce debt

46 «

As at | February 2021 the Group had o senior finance facility of £25.8m comprising of three term loans "A", "B" and "C". Term foan "A" is repaid in gquarterly
instalments until termination date (31 Gctober 2023), ferm loan "B remains at £10m until termination date (9 November 2023) and term loan "C" is partly repaid
i guarterly Instalments with a hnal repayment on termination date (31 October 2023}, The loans accrue inferest at Libor plus 4%, Libor plus 4.5% and Libor plus

4.25% respectively and are paid quarterly.

Mon-current

2022 2021
Seniar finance debt £ 000 £ 000
Operning balance 21.752 17.9200
Additions - 5,769
Repayments (3.308) (1.917)
Closing balance S S 18,444 21,752
Current 3.309 3.309
womcurent S - asiss 18443
As Restated
2022 2021
Other loans £' 000 £'000
Opening balance - -
Addifions - 5,828
Restaternent (Note 32} - [5.828)
Closing balance T - L L
31 Deferred consideration
2022 2021
£ 000 £'000
Opening balance 13,834 487
Acquisitions - 14,101
Fair value gain on contingent consideration 19
Net working capital adjustment {502} -
Considerafion settled (6.736) [174)
Foreign exchangs 162 |779)
(ic;sing balance - - B ) - ) __-5,755_; 13;3;4
curent 6,758 7.190
' - - B I 64

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

32. Prior period restatement

On 20 October 2020, the Group acguired 100% of the share capital of Latitude 34 Inc, o technology recruitment business with subsidiares and offices in

the United States of America and India for a consideration of £30,2m. On this date the fransaction was identified under "IFRS3 — Business Combinations”,

During the current financial period the Group has identified the following matter relating to the acquisition of Latitude 36 Inc for which the financial

statements of 31 January 2021 hiuve beernnesluled.

Us Government Paycheck Protection program loan

Included within the identifiable net assets at acquisition date was a liability for a US government Covid Paycheck Protection Program loan [PPP loan).

totaifing £4.178.000

In June 2021, the loan was formally waived by the US Govemnmenl. Due to the criteria required for the loan forgiveness being in existence at the
acquisition date. the loan should not have been recognised on acquisition. Accordingly, the acquisition goodwill value has been reduced by an amount

eqgual to the loan value. Associated foreign currency differences of £350,000 also led to a restaterment of other comprehensive income reducing lotal

comprehensive income from £3,386,000 to £3.034,000

The following table summarises the impact of the prior period adjustment on the financial statements of the Group.

As previously

stated Adjustment Restated
2 PPP Loan 2021
£'000 £' 000 £' 000

Net assets S o 7 o
Goodwil o 76.243 (6.178) 70,065
Bormowings 15.828] 5,828 -
70415 {350} 70.065
Equity L -
o ) o 2,956 a 350 3,308

Currency translation adjusiments
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Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 Jaonuary 2022

2022 2021
Notes £ 000 £ 000
ASSETS
Nan-current assels
Investments 3 108,627 108,627
Loans receivable from group undertakings 4 7317 845
115,944 109,472
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 267 267
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1
248 268
Tolal assets 116,212 10%,740
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 2] 12)
Borowings 7 13,309} {3,309)
(3311 {3.311)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings [15,134) (18,443}
Loans payable to group undertakings 5 {11.61¢) {1,055)
(26.750) {19,498)
Totat liabilities (30,061) (22,80%)
Net assets 85,151 86,931
EQuUITY
Ordinary shares & 1 1
Share Premium 10,000 10,000
Fair value and other non-distributable reserves 14,751 14,751
Other distributable reserves 67,969 47,949
Retained loss 16,570) 15,790)
84,151 86,931

Tolal equity

The company financial statements an pages 48 - 51 were approved by the board and autharised forissue on its behalf by Chris Tilley.

CA ./W\J'v\

Chiris Tilley Date:  26-May-22

Director

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Fair valve and

other ncn-
distributable Other

Share capital pref:lz:: reserves dlslr::::::: '::;::_:;:1 e:s Total

£' 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £' 000 £ 000

Balance at 31 Januvary 2020 1 11,751 67,969 {4.802) 7799
lossforthe pefiod . ] I o (42¢)
Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the period - T o B B 777@26) - {42¢)
Shares Issued during the pericd - 10,000 - - - 10,000
Dividends paid - - - 1562) (342)
501;,;;;.;-,; 31 J;;;my 2(7]27}777 1_ 10_600 -‘I 4,751 67,969 (5790) o 86,931
Profit for the period - - . - i ) s
Tolat comprehensive (loss)/income for the period T - o - 4% 48
Shares issued during the period - - - - - -
Dividends paid - - - - {1.235) [1.235)
B;l;;;;nrs] Jc;];qry 202; . -1__- - 1_0_(_100 14,751 67,969 (TS;O) o 84,151

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

1. Zlgnificant accounting policies

The separate firancial stalements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2004, The Company meets the definifion of a qualifyirg
ertity under firancial Reporting Stardard {'FRS'} 100, issued by the Finarcial Reporting Council {'FRC'). Accordingly. the firancia’ statements have been
preparad ir accordance with FRS 101 *Reduced Disclosure Framework' as issued by the Financial Reporting Coungit.

As permitred by FRS 101, the Company has taker advantage of the disclosute exerrplions available under tha' standard ir relghon 1o busiress combirations,
share-based payment, financial instruments, capital managemeant, presentation of a cask-flow staternent, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets
and certain re«ated party transachons.

wnere required. equivalen! disclosures are given in the Group accounts.

The financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis, which is gererally based on the fair vatue of the consideration given in exchange
for the goods and services. The principal account'ng policies adopted are the same as those set outin rote 3 o the corsolidoled fingncial stolements except
as noted below.

No eritical judgements were applied in the parent company ofter those discussed in note 5 to the corsclda’ed financial statements,

Investments

Invesiments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate. provisions for impairment. Impairment reviews are conducted annually and whenever
evenls or changes ir circumstances indicate that the camying amount may rot be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for
the amaoun® by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverabie amount,

The recoveraple amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of sale and value-in-use, In assessing valus-in-use, tne estimated fulure cash flows are
discounied tc their present value using a posi-tax d'scount rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific o
the asse* for which the estimates of future cash flows have rot been adiusted. Assets are Grouped at the lowest leve's for which there are separately
idsntifiable cash flows [cash-generatirg units].

2. Profit for the perlod

The proft for the 12 month pericd erded 31 January 2022 in the financial statements of Nash Squared Holdings Limited, the Company, was £0.5 [2021: loss
£0.4m}. As permitted by s408 Comoanies Act 2004, no profit and ioss account is presented in respect of the parent Compary,

3. Investment In subsidiaries

2022 2

Shares in Group underfakings £ 000 £ 000
Opening Balance 108,827 98,627
Additions 10,000
108,427 108,427

Closing Balance

The directors consider tnat the cartying value of the investrments is supported by thair underly rg net assets The carrying va've of the irvesments was testea
against discounted fulure cash flows dunng the period. The forecasts were based o pos-fax cash flows derived from the acoroved budget for Y2021 and
the lorg term strategic plon. Mandagement considers *Ra* these forecasts are achevaole. Should future cash flows be urab e to suoport the caryrg va Je,
an i ocarment would be recognised.

& full list of suns diary cormpanies ard brarches owned drectiy or indirecily oy the Cempary os ot 31 Jonuary 2022 is presented ar pagss 57 53

Nash Squared Heldings Limited Annua Repo & Accouns 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
confinued

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

4. Loans receivable from group undertakings

2022 2021
£' 000 £ 000
Amounts owed by group undertakings 7.317 7.188

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured and may be paid by the borrower at any time unless otherwise agreed between Group
undertakings. The interest is charged at a 2.5% margin over LIBOR in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parties. These dare not
expected to be repaid within the next 12 months,

Information on each lean is included in note 23 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

5. loans payable to group undertakings

2022 2021
£ 000 £' 000
Amounts owed to group underakings 11,616 7,397

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured and may be paid by the Company at any fime uniess otherwise agreed between Group
undertakings. Interest is charged at a 2.5% margin over the bank base rate applicable in the jurisdiction of the lender, in accordance with formal loan
agreements between the paries. These are not expected to be repald within the next 12 months.

Information on each loan is included in note 25 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4. Share capital

2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000

Allotted and fully paid
73,323,183 ordinary shares of 000! pence each 1 1

7. Bomrowings

Further details are provided in the senior finance debt section of note 30 to the consclidated financial statements.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Arnudl Repart & Accodnts 2022
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Full List of Subsidiaries of Nash Squared Holdings Limited

Full list of Subsidiaries

52 4

% Holdlng Princlpal activity
United Kingdom
3 Noble Street, London EC2V 7EE
Harvey Nash Ltd 100% Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Ltd 100% Software consultancy
Ireland
Lower Ground Floor, 100 Mount Street, Dublin 2
Harvey Nash (Ireland) Ltd 100% Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Software Ltd 100% Software consultancy
Netherlands
Industrieweqg 4, Maarssen, 3606 AS
Harvey Nash BY 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Newco BY 100% Non-trading
Harvey Nash Perspective BY 100% Recruitment cansultancy
Germany
Gratenberger Allee 337a-¢ 40235 Diisseldort
Harvey Nash GmbH 100% Recruitment consultancy
Nash Direct GmbH 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives {Germany) GmbH 100% Mon-frading
Belgium
Nieuwe gentesteenweqg 21/3, 1702 Groot-Bijgaarden
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash NV 100% Recruitment consultancy
Residentie Docklands, Indiéstraat 2, 2000 Antwerpen
etMenka NV 100% Recruitment consultancy
Talent [T BVBA 100% Recruitment consultancy
Teom4Talent BYBA 100% Recruitment consultancy
Pro-Cured BVBA 100% Procurement
Switzerland
Badenerstrasse 15, Postfach 8021 Zirich
Harvey Nash AG 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Holdings AG 100% Nonr-frading
Poland
Mokotowska 49, 00-542 Warsaw
Harvey Nash Alumni Sp.z o.0. Warsaw 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Technolegy Poland Sp.z 0.0. Wersaw 100% Recruitment consultancy
NashTech $p.z 0.0. Warsaw 100% Software consultancy
India
5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM, Birla Science Centre Complex, Adarshnagar, Hyderabad

100% Recruitment consultancy

Harvey Nash Private Limited Hyderabod

Nash S3quared Holdings Limlted
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Full List of Subsidiaries of Nash Squared Holdings Limited
continued

Full list of Subsidiaries

% Holding Principal activity
Sweden
World Trade Center, Kungsbron 1, Box 843, 101 3¢ $lockholm
IE Management AB 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Recruitment AB 100% Recruitment consullancy
Harvey Nash Services AB 100% Recruitment consullancy
PAT Management AB 100% Recruitment consultancy
Finland
Unlonsgatan 22, 00130 Helsinkl
Harvey Nash GY 100% Recruitment cansultancy
Norway
Haakon ¥II's Gafe &, 0141 Oslo
Harvey Nash AS 100% Recruitment consultancy
United States of America
1700 Route 23 North, Sulte 100, Wayhe, N1 07470
Harvey Nash fnc 106% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Holdings Inc 100% Non-trading
$BS Group Inc 100% Non-trading
Broadbay Metwarks Inc 100% MNon-frading
Tech Discovery LLC 100% Non-frading
Euro Systerns International Inc 100% Non-frading
Applied Concepts Inc 100% Non-trading
Scientific & Business Systems inc 100% Non-frading
810, Crescent Centre Dr., Sulte 120, Franklin, Tennessee 37047
Latitude 36 Inc 100% Recruitment consullancy
Japan
Tokyo Square Garden 14F, WeWork, 3-1-1 Kyobashl. Chue-ku, Tokyo. Japan 104-0031
NashTech Japan KK 100% Software consultancy
Vietnam
344 Cong Hoa Street, Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh Ciy
Harvey Nash [Vieinam) Company Ltd 100% Software consultancy
British Virgin Islands
P.0O Box 957, Offshore Incorporations Centre, Road Town, Tordola
Harvey Nash Ltd {BV) 100% Non-frading
Singapore
One Raffles Quay, North Tower, Level 25
Harvey Nash Singapore PTE Lid 100% Non-trading
71 Robinson Road, #13-12%9
NashTech Singapaore PTE Ltd 100% Scftware consultoncy
Hong Kong
Unit 1501, 15/F Henley Bullding, 5 Gueen’s Road Central. Central

100% Nan-trading

Harvey Nash (Hong Kong] Lid
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Information
Offices

Offices

United Kingdom
London
3 Nable Street

Londen EC2V 7EE

Birmingham
4301 waterside Centre
Birmingham Business Park

Birmingham B37 7YN

Birminghom {Spinks)
Somerset House
37 Ternple Street

Birmingham B2 5DP

Birmingham (Crimsen}
Birmingham Business Park
Kings Court, 2440 The Crescent

Birmingham B37 7YE

Manchester
31 Booth Street

Manchester M2 4AF

Newcastile
Hoults Yard, Walker Road
Newcastle-upon-Tyne

NE& 2HL

Leeds
Marshalls Mill, Marshall Street

Leeds L5311 PYE

Edinburgh
Waverley Gate
2-4 Waterloo Flace

Edinburgh, EH1 3EG

Glasgow
1 West Regent Street

Glasgow G2 1RW

Ireland

Dublin

Lower Ground Floar
100 Mount Street

Dublin 2

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

Belgium
Antwerp
Houtdok-Nooidkaai

12 - 2030 antweipen

Brussels
Nieuwe Gentesteenweg 21/3

1702 Groot-Bijgaarden

Ghent
Huize Minne
Kornrijksestoenweg 62

9830 Sint-Martens-Latemn

Netherlands
Utrecht
Industrieweg 4

3606 AS Maarssen

Groningen
Heresingel 12

3711 £R Croningen

Germany
Diisseldort
Grafenberger Allee 337a-c

40235 DUssetdorf

Berlin
c/o WarkRepublic, KurfUrstenstralle 87

10787 Berlin

Stuttgart
Tibinger Strasse 24
D-70178 Stuttgart

Munich
leonrodstrasse 52

[3-806346 Minchen

Poland
Warsaw
Mokatowska 4%

00-542 Warsaw

Finland
Helsinki
Unionsgaian 22

00130 Helsinki

Sweden

Stockholm

World Trade Cenler,
Kungsbron |

Box 843, 101 36 Stockholm

Gothenbuig
Korsgatan 3

411 146 Gdteborg

Maolmd
Gibraltargatan 7

21118 Malmd

Norway
Oslo
Strandveien 50

1364, Lysaker, Oslo

Switzerland
Ziirich
Badenerstrasse 15

FPostfach. BO21 Zlnch

Denmark
Copenhagen
Lautrupsgade 7
2100, Copenhagen
USA

New Jersey

1700 Route 23 North
Suite 100

Wayne, NJ 07470

California
39445 Paseo Padre Farkway
Suite 3000

Fremont, CA 94538

Tennessee
810, Cresent Centre Dr.,
Suite 120

Franklin, Tennessee 37067

Australia

Sydney

Suite 14.02, Level 14
20 Hunter Street

Sydney NSW 2000

India

Hyderabad

5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM
Birla Science Centre Complex

Adarshnagar, Hyderabad

Vietnam

Hanoi

4F & &F, HITC Building
239 Xuan Thuy Road

Cau Giay Distiict, Hanoi

Ho ChiMinh City
edown Building

364 Cong Hoa Street
Tan Binh District

Ho Chi minh Cily

Danang

54 o

3rd Floorn, Diamond Time Complex,

35 Thai Phien Road
Hai Chau Disirict

Danang

Singapore
71 Robinson Road
#14-01

Singapore, 048895

Japan

Tokyo

Tokyo Square Garden 14F
WeWork

3-1-1 Kyobashi

Chivo-ku, Tokya, 104-0031
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p 55 Information
Officers and professional advisers

Officers and professional advisers

Officers Professional advisers

Directors Solicitors

Bev While Gury Brawning addleshaw oddard LLF

Chris Tilley Michael Haxby 40 Chiswell Street

David Marrison Diederik Vos London

Michael Branigan Streisan Bevan EC1Y 4AG

Adrian Gunn Joanna Macleod United Kingdom

Secretary

Chrls Tilley Independent Auditor
Deloitte LLP

. . Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Registered office

2 New Street Square
Nash squared Holdings Limited a

3 Noble Street London EC4A 3B
Llondon EC2V 7EE
Principal bankers
Registered number Naticnal Wesiminster Bank plc
11464274 (England and Wales) 280 Bishopsgate

Londan EC2ZM 4RB

Contact details
+44 (0) 20 7333 0033

info@nashsquared.com

www.nashsquared.com

Social Media
o twitter.cam/Mash_Squared

m inkedin.com/{company /nash-squared/

Ultimate parent

The Power of Talent Topco Limited
Company number: 132333C

Registered in the Isle of Man
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